Board of Education

Mesa County Valley School District 51

Board Special Meeting Minutes

January 7, 2022

Board Special Meeting Minutes



A - Doug Levinson B - Kari Sholtes C - Andrea Haitz D - Will Jones E - Angela Lema						Board of Education Mesa County Valley School District 51 Board Special Meeting: January 7, 2022	
						Adopted: February 15, 2022	
	А	В	С	D	E	AGENDA ITEMS	ACTION
						BUSINESS MEETING	7 ACTION
Present Absent	x	х	x	х	x	1. Call to Order/Roll Call	8:34 p.m.
Motion Second Aye No	x	x x	x	x	x x	2. Agenda Approval	Approved
Motion Second Aye No	x	x x	x	x	x x	 Resolution to Authorize Sale of Bonds for Grand Junction High School Ms. Lema questioned why some information was not included in the resolution and discussed the need to disclose, to the community, the amount of mills going toward each specific bond measure. Mrs. Melanie Trujillo, Chief Financial Officer, explained some of the information, in the resolution, was left blank because the information will not be available until after the sale of the bonds. She reported the Certification of Mill Levy Resolution, which is given to the county annually, traditionally lists the total mill levy amount. For future years, she believes the District could list the individual mill levy amounts for each bond within the summary section of the resolution. 	Adopted
Motion Second Aye No	x	Х	х	x x	x x	4. Adjournment 8:52 p.m.	Adjourn
						 BOARD RETREAT A. Team Building Superintendent, Dr. Sirko, opened the meeting with a team building activity by asking Board members and administration the following questions. 1) What is something few people know about you? 2) What is one of your pet peeves? 3) Who would you name as a celebrity crush? 4) What do you hope to accomplish in their current role? B. Communication Board members discussed various ways to share pertinent information. Some noted a phone call worked best for them, while others preferred email or a brief text message to check email if an immediate response was needed. Assistant Superintendent, Dr. Brian Hill, suggested using consistent headings when emailing so members could prioritize the information and easily search for the information. The headings he suggested were Weekly Update, Board Alert or Board Response. The Board requested training from general counsel to ensure when sharing information open meeting laws would not be violated. Members noted it is 	
						important when having discussion to have the discussion in open meetings for transparency and so the public can follow their train of thought.	

A - Doug Levinson	Board of Education	
B - Kari Sholtes	Mesa County Valley School District 51	
C - Andrea Haitz D - Will Jones	Board Special Meeting: January 7, 2022	
E - Angela Lema	Adopted: February 15, 2022	
A B C D E	AGENDA ITEMS	ACTION
	C. Bond Executive Committee	
	 C-1. Board Members Mrs. Haitz reported Mr. Jones, Mr. Levinson and Ms. Lema have all expressed a desire to serve on the Bond Executive Committee. Since three members will the serving on the committee, future meetings will be posted. Should only two members be planning to attend, notification will be given to the assistant secretary so the meeting will not have to be posted. C-2. Community Member Selection Communication was distributed requesting any community members interested in serving on the Bond Executive Committee to submit information to the District. The District received information from thirteen individuals within the posted in the posted of the posted interest of the posted information from the posted individuals within the posted information from the post	
	wishing to serve on the committee. Discussion pursued on the best way to select two or three individuals from the names submitted. The names and information submitted by those interested in serving will be sent to general counsel to see if there is any possible conflicts of interest. Committee members will make the decision on the number of community member to be chosen to serve and who those community members will be.	
	 D. Board Policies Assistant Secretary, Mrs. Bridget Story, gave a brief overview on the process for reviewing and making changes to policy, noting the process was halted due to COVID-19. Policy meetings will be resumed in February. 	
	 E. Proposed Organizational Charts and Staffing Assistant Superintendent, Dr. Brian Hill, answered questions from the Board regarding the organizational charts shared with the Board. Three position will be posted to find qualified applicants to fill the position of Assistant Superintendent, Chief Operations Officer and Chief Academic Officer for the 2022-2023 school year. Positions need to be posted now to find qualified applicants. Dr. Hill noted the position of Chief Operations Officer was vacated last year and was never filled so funding for that position is already in the budget. The position of Chief Academic Officer will be acquired through repurposing another position and may cause a slight increase in the budget. Dr. Hill noted the organizational charts, positions and effectiveness of the positions will be reviewed annually. 	
	 F. District Legal Counsel Board members requested an up-to-date cost analysis showing how the cost of in-house counsel compared with outside counsel over the past several years. Members questioned if the cost savings during the first year of having in-house counsel was accurate since the courts were not in session due to COVID-19. The Board would like staff members, who utilize in-house counsel to complete an anonymous survey to see if staff feel in-house counsel is working efficiently. 	
	Questions the Board will be looking to answer to are: 1) Does staff feel in-house counsel has been effective and more beneficial? 2) Has there been a true savings using in-house counsel? 3) If in-house counsel is working do we have the right person?	

. Davia				Board of Education				
A - Doug Levinson B - Kari Sholtes				Mesa County Valley School District 51				
C - Andrea Haitz				Board Special Meeting: January 7, 2022				
D - Will Jones								
E - Angel	la Lema			Adopted: February 15, 2022				
	ΑB	С	DΕ					
				AGENDA ITEMS	ACTION			
				 G. Future Board Coffee Dates and Locations The next Board Coffee is scheduled for January 15, 2022 at Palisade High School. Board members would like to have the February Coffee held at a location on Orchard Mesa and the one in March at a location near or in Fruita. Members discussed the possibility of having future coffees with the purpose of meeting with various staffing groups. Mr. Tim Couch, President of Mesa Valley Education Association will reach out to teachers to see if an acceptable date and time can be found for the Board to meet with teachers. H. Open Discussion Dr. Sholtes requested to hear information regarding student achievement. Assistant Superintendent, Dr. Brian Hill, shared information on a pilot program through the state for a yearlong Board training. The training is grant funded and will begin in February. Mr. Jones reported on working with District administration to bring back a committee to look into bullying issues. Ms. Lema reported she has received information from parents regarding students being bullied by teachers on both sides of COVID issues. It was noted teachers should not be expressing their opinions or trying to influence students' decisions around mask usage or vaccinations rather teachers should be 				
				encouraging students to feel comfortable in their choices and for everyone to respect the decisions of others. H. Adjournment 8:52 p.m.				
				Bridget Story, Assistant Secretary Board of Education				

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF MESA COUNTY VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 51, MESA COUNTY, COLORADO:

Section 1. <u>Definitions</u>. The terms defined in this Section shall have the designated meanings for all purposes of this Resolution and of any amendatory or supplemental Resolution, except where the context by clear implication requires otherwise. Other terms may be parenthetically defined elsewhere in this Resolution.

A. <u>Act means Title 22, Article 42, C.R.S.</u>

B. <u>Beneficial Owner</u> means any Person for which a Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds.

C. <u>Board</u> means the Board of Education of the Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, in Mesa County, Colorado.

D. <u>Bond Fund</u> means the separate, special account in the District's Bond Redemption Fund created by this Resolution for the Bonds and held by the County Treasurer.

E. <u>Bond Resolution</u> or <u>Resolution</u> means this Resolution of the District which provides for the issuance and delivery of the Bonds, subject to the parameters set forth herein and confirmed in the Sale Certificate.

F. <u>Bonds</u> means the District's General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022, issued pursuant to this Resolution.

G. <u>Business Day</u> means a day on which banks located in the city in which the Principal Office of the Paying Agent is located are not required or authorized to be closed and on which the New York Stock Exchange is not closed.

H. <u>Chief Financial Officer</u> means the Director of Financial Services of the District, or his or her successor in function.

I. <u>Code</u> means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as in effect on the date of delivery of the Bonds.

J. <u>Continuing Disclosure Certificate</u> means the Continuing Disclosure Certificate executed by the District on the date of delivery of the Bonds.

K. <u>County</u> means Mesa County, Colorado.

L. <u>County Treasurer</u> means the County Treasurer of the County.

M. <u>C.R.S.</u> means the Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended and supplemented as of the date hereof.

N. <u>Depository</u> means any securities depository as the District may provide and appoint, in accordance with the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, which shall act as securities depository for the Bonds.

O. <u>District</u> means the Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado.

P. <u>DTC</u> means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and assigns.

Q. <u>Election</u> means the election held within the District on Tuesday, November 2, 2021.

R. <u>Federal Securities</u> means only direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States and which are not callable prior to their scheduled maturities by the issuer thereof (or an ownership interest in any of the foregoing).

S. <u>Letter of Representations</u> means the blanket issuer letter of representations from the District to DTC to induce DTC to accept the Bonds as eligible for deposit at DTC.

T. <u>Official Statement</u> means the final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement.

U. <u>Outstanding</u> means, as of any date of calculation, all Bonds executed, issued, and delivered by the District except:

1. Bonds cancelled by the District, Paying Agent, or Registrar or surrendered to the District or Registrar for cancellation;

2. Bonds in lieu of, or in substitution for, which other Bonds shall have been executed, issued, and delivered by the District and authenticated by the Registrar unless proof satisfactory to the Registrar is presented that any such Bonds are duly held by the lawful Registered Owners thereof; or

3. Bonds deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Section 17 hereof.

V. <u>Owner</u> or <u>Registered Owner</u> means any Person who is the registered owner of any Bond as shown on the registration books kept by the Registrar.

2

W. <u>Participant</u> or <u>Participants</u> means any broker-dealer, bank, or other financial institution from time to time for which DTC or another Depository holds the Bonds.

X. <u>Paying Agent</u> means UMB Bank, n.a., the paying agent for the Bonds, or its successors or assigns.

Y. <u>Person</u> means any natural person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, limited liability company, trust, public body, or other entity.

Z. <u>Preliminary Official Statement</u> means the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution, with such revisions as are hereafter approved by the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer.

AA. <u>President</u> means the President of the Board, or in his or her absence, the Vice President of the Board.

BB. <u>Principal Office</u> means the principal office of the Registrar or Paying Agent, as the case may be.

CC. <u>Project</u> means the construction of the projects and improvements as authorized by the voters of the District at the Election and the payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

DD. <u>Purchase Contract</u> means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the District and the Underwriter.

EE. <u>Record Date</u> means the fifteenth day of the calendar month (whether or not a Business Day) immediately preceding an interest payment date.

FF. <u>Registrar</u> means UMB Bank, n.a., or its successors and assigns, acting as registrar for the Bonds.

GG. <u>Registrar Agreement</u> means the Registrar and Paying Agent Agreement between the District and the Registrar.

HH. <u>Sale Certificate</u> means a certificate executed by any of the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer dated on or before the date of delivery of the Bonds, setting forth (i) the aggregate principal amount and denominations of the Bonds; (ii) the rates of interest on the Bonds; (iii) the existence and amount of any capitalized interest or reserve fund; (iv) the price at which the Bonds will be sold; (v) the redemption date of the Bonds and the conditions on which and the prices at which such Bonds may be called for prior redemption; (vi) the amount of principal of the Bonds maturing in any year; (vi) the dates on which principal

and interest will be paid and the first interest payment date; (vii) whether the Bonds shall be secured by a municipal bond insurance policy; and (viii) any other finding or determination authorized under the Supplemental Act, all subject to the parameters and restrictions contained in this Resolution.

II. <u>Secretary</u> means the Secretary of the Board, or in his or her absence, the Assistant Secretary of the Board.

JJ. <u>Special Record Date</u> means a special date fixed by the Registrar to determine the names and addresses of Registered Owners of the Bonds for purposes of paying interest on a special interest payment date for the payment of defaulted interest.

KK. State means the State of Colorado.

LL. <u>Superintendent</u> means the Superintendent of the District.

MM. <u>Supplemental Act</u> means the Supplemental Public Securities Act, constituting Title 11, Article 57, Part 2, C.R.S.

NN. <u>Term Bonds</u> means Bonds that are payable on or before their specified maturity dates from sinking fund payments established for that purpose and calculated to retire such Bonds on or before their specified maturity dates.

OO. <u>Underwriter</u> means RBC Capital Markets LLC.

Section 2. <u>Recitals</u>.

A. The District is a public corporation duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State.

B. The District is authorized under Section 11-57-205 of the Supplemental Act to delegate to any member of the issuing authority, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer of the public entity the authority to sign a contract for the purchase of the securities or to accept a binding bid for the securities, such delegation to be effective for one year after adoption of the act of issuance.

C. At the Election, the Board was authorized to contract general obligation bonded indebtedness on behalf of the District in an aggregate amount not exceeding \$115,000,000, pursuant to the following bond question:

SHALL MESA COUNTY VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 51 DEBT BE INCREASED \$115 MILLION, WITH A MAXIMUM REPAYMENT COST OF NOT TO EXCEED \$205.75 MILLION, AND SHALL TAXES BE INCREASED NOT MORE THAN \$20.9 MILLION ANNUALLY BY THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS: 1) FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF REPLACING GRAND JUNCTION HIGH SCHOOL (CONSTRUCTED IN 1956) WITH A NEW HIGH SCHOOL ON THE SAME SITE AND RENOVATING THE EXISTING EAST GYM AND ART BUILDING ON THE HIGH SCHOOL CAMPUS SITE (THE "PROJECT"); AND

2) REPLACEMENT OF THE HIGH SCHOOL WILL INCLUDE IMPROVED CLASSROOMS, LEARNING SPACES AND FACILITIES BY EXPANDING STUDENT OPPORTUNITIES AND ACCESS TO MORE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS, COLLEGE CREDIT COURSES AND VOCATIONAL AND TECHNICAL SKILLS TRAINING CLASSES; AND

3) THE NEW HIGH SCHOOL WILL ALSO INCLUDE IMPROVED ART AND ATHLETIC FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO ALL STUDENTS; AND

4) WITH THE TAX INCREASE EXPIRING UPON THE REPAYMENT OF ANY BONDS ISSUED PURSUANT TO THIS BALLOT QUESTION; AND

WITH BONDS ISSUED AT SUCH TIME, AT SUCH PRICE, AND IN SUCH MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THIS BALLOT ISSUE, AND SHALL PROPERTY TAXES BE LEVIED AT A MILL LEVY SUFFICIENT IN EACH YEAR TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON THE DEBT AND ANY REFUNDING DEBT WHEN DUE, OR FOR A RESERVE THAT CAN ONLY BE USED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON BONDS; PROVIDED THAT THE PROCEEDS RECEIVED BY THE DISTRICT FROM THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THIS QUESTION SHALL NOT EXCEED \$115 MILLION; AND PROVIDED FURTHER THAT ANY PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS REMAINING AFTER THE PROJECT IS COMPLETE SHALL USED ONLY TO REPAY BONDS AND NOT USED FOR PROJECTS NOT AUTHORIZED BY THIS BALLOT QUESTION?

D. The District has not issued or incurred any general obligation debt authorized as a result of the Election.

E. Pursuant to Article X, Section 20(4) of the State Constitution, bonds may not be sold on terms which exceed their share of the maximum repayment costs described in the ballot question or in the notice sent to voters.

F. Pursuant to the ballot issue notice provided to the electors of the District in connection with the Election, the maximum annual repayment cost of general obligation bonds issued pursuant to the bond question approved at the Election may not exceed \$20,900,000 and the total repayment cost of general obligation bonds issued pursuant to the bond question approved at the Election may not exceed \$205,750,000.

G. The Board is of the opinion that the District should issue not more than \$115,000,000 of the authorization for the Project as authorized by the voters of the District at the Election.

H. The District desires to delegate to the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer the independent ability to authorize the issuance of the Bonds for the purpose of effecting the Project, all subject to the parameters set forth in this Resolution.

I. The Board has determined, and does hereby determine, that so long as the Bonds are issued within the parameters set forth in Section 5 hereof, the limitations of the Act imposed upon the issuance of the Bonds will have been met prior to the issuance of the Bonds and that the Project, as may hereafter be approved by the President, Superintendent or Chief Financial Officer, serves a valid and governmental purpose and is necessary, expedient and in the best interests of the District and its taxpayers.

J. The creation of the indebtedness authorized by this Resolution will not cause the District to exceed the maximum general obligation indebtedness authorized by State law.

K. The Board has determined, and does hereby determine, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the District that the Bonds now be authorized to be issued and delivered, and the Board hereby determines to use the proceeds of the Bonds authorized by this Resolution to effect the Project.

L. Section 22-45-103(1)(b)(V), C.R.S. requires that any school district with outstanding bonded indebtedness to select at least one commercial bank or depository trust company to act as third party custodian to administer the school district's bond redemption fund, which custodian shall be responsible for making payments of principal and interest on a school district's outstanding bonded indebtedness as provided by law; a school district is not required to designate a third-party custodian to administer the bond redemption fund if the County Treasurer keeps the funds and accounts of the school district.

M. The District has determined that the County Treasurer shall keep the funds and accounts specified above.

N. There is on file in the District offices the proposed forms of the following documents, with such changes as hereinafter approved by the President, Superintendent, or Chief Financial Officer: (i) the Purchase Contract; (ii) the Registrar Agreement; (iii) the Preliminary Official Statement; and (iv) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

6

Section 3. <u>Ratification</u>. All action not inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution heretofore taken by the Board and the officers of the District directed toward effecting the Project and the sale and issuance of the Bonds for such purposes be, and the same is hereby ratified, approved, and confirmed.

Section 4. <u>Authorization of Bonds; Delegation</u>.

A. In accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State and the provisions of this Resolution, and for the purpose of defraying the cost of the Project, the District hereby authorizes the issuance of the Bonds as set forth herein and in the Sale Certificate, in the aggregate principal amount provided in the Sale Certificate, subject to the parameters and restrictions contained in this Resolution.

B. Section 11-57-204 of the Supplemental Act provides that a public entity, including the District, may elect in an act of issuance to apply all or any of the provisions of the Supplemental Act. The Board hereby elects to apply all of the provisions of the Supplemental Act to the Bonds.

C. Section 11-57-205 of the Supplemental Act provides that a public entity may delegate to any member of the issuing authority, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer of the public entity the authority to sign a contract for the purchase of the securities or to accept a binding bid for the securities, such delegation to be effective for one year after adoption of the act of issuance. The Board hereby delegates to any of the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer the authority, for one year from the date of this Resolution, to determine whether it is in the best interest of the District to issue the Bonds, to independently execute and deliver the Sale Certificate, and to make and approve the final determinations contained therein for the Bonds, subject to the parameters and restrictions of this Resolution. Any of the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized to determine if obtaining municipal bond insurance with respect to the Bonds is in the best interests of the District, and if so, to select a bond insurer to issue a municipal bond insurance policy, execute a commitment relating to the same, and execute any related documents or agreements required by such commitment. Should the District determine to not obtain municipal bond insurance, any references herein to municipal bond insurance are of not force and effect.

Section 5. <u>Bond Details</u>.

A. <u>The Bonds</u>.

1. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form (i.e., registered as to payment of both principal and interest) initially registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC, as Depository for the Bonds. The Bonds shall be dated as of their date of delivery, and shall be issued in denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (provided that no Bond may be in a denomination which exceeds the principal coming due on any maturity date and no individual Bond may be issued for more than one maturity and interest rate).

2. The Bonds shall mature, bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) payable to the Registered Owners of such Bonds from their date to maturity or prior redemption, be subject to redemption, and be sold, all as provided in the Sale Certificate; subject to the following parameters and restrictions.

(i) the Bonds shall mature no later than December 1, 2041;

(ii) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed \$115,000,000;

(iii) the Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption at such time or times as required by State law and as set forth in the Sale Certificate, at a redemption price not to exceed 103%;

(iv) the maximum annual and total repayment cost of the Bonds shall not exceed the amounts authorized at the Election (\$20,900,000 and \$205,750,000, respectively);

(v) the proceeds received by the District from the issuance of the Bonds shall not exceed \$115,000,000;

(vi) the purchase price of the Bonds shall not be less than 98% of the original aggregate principal amount of such Bonds; and

(vii) the issuance of the Bonds shall not cause the District to exceed its statutory debt limitations at the time of issuance.

Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, commencing on the date provided in the Sale Certificate.

3. The principal of and premium, if any, on any Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner thereof as shown on the registration books kept by the Registrar upon maturity or prior redemption of the Bonds and upon presentation and surrender at the Principal

8

Office. If any Bond shall not be paid upon such presentation and surrender at maturity, it shall continue to draw interest at the rate borne by said Bond until the principal thereof is paid in full. Payment of interest on any Bond shall be made to the Registered Owner thereof by check, draft, or wire, sent by the Paying Agent, on or before each interest payment date (or, if such interest payment date is not a Business Day, on or before the next succeeding Business Day), to the Registered Owner thereof at such Person's address as it last appears on the registration books kept by the Registrar on the Record Date; but, any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the Person who is the Registered Owner thereof on the Record Date and shall be payable to the Person who is the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of any such defaulted interest. Such Special Record Date and the date fixed for payment of such defaulted interest shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become available for payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given to the Registered Owners not less than ten days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class mail to each such Registered Owner as shown on the Registrar's registration books on a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed for the payment of such defaulted interest.

The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on any Bond by such alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the Registered Owner of such Bond and the Paying Agent (provided, however, that neither the District nor the County Treasurer shall not be required to make funds available to the Paying Agent prior to the dates specified in the Registrar Agreement). All such payments shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America, without deduction for services of the Registrar or Paying Agent.

4. The District hereby directs the Paying Agent to comply with the provisions of Section 22-41-110, C.R.S., and the State Treasurer's Policy Concerning the Timely Payment of School District Obligations in order to assure that the principal of and interest on the Bonds are paid when due. In the event the District determines that it will not, or in the event the District does not have sufficient funds on hand to make a principal or interest payment on the Bonds, the District hereby agrees to notify the State Treasurer and the Paying Agent.

Section 6. <u>Prior Redemption</u>.

A. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as provided in the Sale Certificate.

B. The Term Bonds, if any, shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at the times, in the amounts, and at the prices set forth in the Sale Certificate. On or before the thirtieth day prior to each sinking fund payment date, the Registrar will proceed to call the Term Bonds (or any Term Bond or Bonds issued to replace such Term Bonds) for redemption from the sinking fund on the next December 1, and give notice of such call without further instruction or notice from the District.

At its option, to be exercised on or before the sixtieth day next preceding each sinking fund redemption date, the District may (a) deliver to the Registrar for cancellation Term Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on such date in an aggregate principal amount desired or (b) receive a credit in respect of its sinking fund redemption obligation for any Term Bonds subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on such date, which prior to said date have been redeemed (otherwise than through the operation of the sinking fund) and canceled by the Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any sinking fund redemption obligation. Each Term Bond so delivered or previously redeemed will be credited by the Registrar at the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the District on such sinking fund redemption date and the principal amount of Term Bonds to be redeemed by operation of such sinking fund on such date will be accordingly reduced. The District will on or before the sixtieth day next preceding each sinking fund redemption date furnish the Registrar with its certificate indicating whether or not and to what extent the provisions of (a) and (b) above are to be availed with respect to such sinking fund payment. Failure of the District to deliver such certificate shall not affect the Registrar's duty to give notice of sinking fund redemption as provided in this Section.

C. In the case of Bonds of a denomination larger than \$5,000, a portion of such Bond (\$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof) may be redeemed, in which case the Registrar shall, without charge to the Owner of such Bond, authenticate and issue a replacement Bond or Bonds for the unredeemed portion thereof.

D. Notice of any prior redemption shall be given by the Paying Agent in the name of the District by sending a copy of such notice by first-class, postage prepaid mail, electronic means, or such other means as may be required by the Depository, not more than 60 days and not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date to each Registered Owner of any Bond all or a portion of which is called for redemption at such Person's address as it last appears on the registration books kept by the Registrar. Failure to give such notice by sending the notice in

accordance with this Section to the Registered Owner of any Bond, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other Bonds.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state:

- 1. CUSIP numbers of Bonds to be redeemed;
- 2. the redemption date;
- 3. the redemption price;

4. if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification of the Bonds (and, in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts and interest rate) to be redeemed;

5. that on the redemption date the redemption price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and

6. the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which place of payment shall be the Principal Office or such other office as shall be designated by the Paying Agent.

On or prior to any redemption date, the District shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed on that date.

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be so redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the District shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Paying Agent at the redemption price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the Registered Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate in the amount of the unpaid principal. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Registrar and shall not be reissued.

In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice may be given by the Paying Agent in order to comply with the requirements of any Depository holding the Bonds but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if notice thereof is given as above prescribed.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, any notice of optional redemption may contain a statement that the redemption is conditioned upon the receipt by the Paying Agent of funds on or before the date fixed for redemption sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds so called for redemption, and that if such funds are not available, such redemption shall be cancelled by written notice to the Owners of the Bonds called for redemption in the same manner as the original redemption notice was mailed.

Section 7. Execution and Authentication. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of and on behalf of the District and signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the President, sealed with a manual or facsimile impression of the seal of the District and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary. The Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of the officers in office at the time of the signing thereof shall be the valid and binding obligations of the District (subject to the requirement of authentication by the Registrar as hereinafter provided) notwithstanding that before the delivery of the Bonds or before the issuance of the Bonds upon transfer or exchange, any or all of the Persons whose facsimile signatures appear on the Bonds shall have ceased to fill their respective offices. The President and Secretary may, by the execution of a signature certificate pertaining to the Bonds, adopt as and for their respective signatures the facsimiles thereof appearing on the Bonds. At the time of the execution of the signature of the signature of his or her predecessor in office in the event that such facsimile signature appears upon any of the Bonds.

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless the certificate of authentication, substantially in the form hereinafter provided, has been duly manually executed by the Registrar. The Registrar's certificate of authentication shall be deemed to have been duly executed by it if manually signed by an authorized officer or representative of the Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or representative sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds issued hereunder. By authenticating any of the Bonds initially delivered pursuant to this Resolution, the Registrar shall be deemed to have assented to the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 8. <u>Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds</u>.

A. Subject to Section 9 hereof, books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds shall be kept by the Registrar. Upon the surrender for transfer of any Bond at the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the Registered Owner or such Person's attorney duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount and of the same maturity and interest rate, bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. Bonds may be exchanged at the Principal Office for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate of other authorized denominations. The Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a Bond or Bonds which the Registered Owner making the exchange is entitled to receive, bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. The Registrar may impose reasonable charges in connection with exchanges or transfers of Bonds which charges (as well as any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer) shall be paid by the Owner of any Bond requesting such exchange or transfer.

B. The Registrar shall not be required (1) to transfer or exchange all or a portion of any Bond subject to prior redemption during the period beginning at the opening of business 15 days next preceding the mailing of notice calling any Bonds for prior redemption as herein provided or (2) to transfer or exchange all or a portion of a Bond after the sending a notice calling such Bond or portion thereof for prior redemption, except for the unredeemed portion of Bonds being redeemed in part.

C. The Person in whose name any Bond shall be registered, on the registration books kept by the Registrar, shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for the purpose of making payment thereof and for all other purposes except as may otherwise be provided with respect to payment of interest to the Owners of the Bonds as is provided in Section 5 hereof or as otherwise provided in Section 25 hereof; and payment of or on account of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of the Registered Owner thereof or such Person's legal representative, but such registration may be changed upon transfer of such Bond in the manner and subject to the conditions and limitations provided herein. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. D. If any Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed, or mutilated, the Registrar shall, upon receipt of such evidence, information, or indemnity relating thereto as it may reasonably require, authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount and of the same maturity and interest rate, bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. If such lost, stolen, destroyed, or mutilated Bond shall have matured or is about to become due and payable, the Registrar may direct the Paying Agent to pay such Bond in lieu of replacement.

E. The officers of the District are authorized to deliver to the Registrar fully executed but unauthenticated Bonds in such quantities as may be convenient to be held in custody by the Registrar pending use as herein provided.

F. Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent upon payment thereof, or to the Registrar for transfer, exchange, or replacement as provided herein, such Bond shall be promptly cancelled by the Paying Agent or Registrar, and counterparts of a certificate of such cancellation shall be furnished by the Paying Agent or Registrar to the District.

Section 9. <u>Book Entry</u>.

A. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Resolution, the Bonds initially shall be evidenced by one Bond for each maturity and interest rate in denominations equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of such maturity and interest rate. Such initially delivered Bonds shall be registered in the name of "Cede & Co." as nominee for DTC, the Depository for the Bonds. The Bonds may not thereafter be transferred or exchanged except:

1. to any successor of DTC or its nominee, which successor must be both a "clearing corporation" as defined in Section 4-8-102(a)(5), C.R.S. and a qualified and registered "clearing agency" under Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; or

2. upon the resignation of DTC or a successor or new Depository under clause (1) or this clause (2) of this paragraph A, or a determination by the Board that DTC or such successor or a new Depository is no longer able to carry out its functions, and the designation by the Board of another Depository acceptable to the Board and to the Depository then holding the Bonds, which new Depository must be both a "clearing corporation" as defined in Section 4-8-102(a)(5), C.R.S. and a qualified and registered "clearing agency" under Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, to carry out the functions of DTC or such successor new Depository; or

3. upon the resignation of DTC or a successor or new Depository under clause (1) above or the designation of a new Depository pursuant to clause (2) above, or a determination of the Board that DTC or such successor or Depository is no longer able to carry out its functions, and the failure by the Board, after reasonable investigation, to locate another Depository under clause (2) to carry out such Depository functions.

B. In the case of a transfer to a successor of DTC or its nominee as referred to in clause (1) or (2) of paragraph A hereof, upon receipt of the Outstanding Bonds by the Registrar together with written instructions for transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, a new Bond for each maturity, and interest rate of the Bonds then Outstanding shall be issued to such successor or new Depository, as the case may be, or its nominee, as is specified in such written transfer instructions. In the case of a resignation or determination under clause (3) of paragraph A hereof and the failure after reasonable investigation to locate another qualified Depository for the Bonds as provided in clause (3) of paragraph A hereof, and upon receipt of the Outstanding Bonds by the Registrar, together with written instructions for transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, new Bonds shall be issued in denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, registered in the names of such Persons, and in such authorized denominations as are requested in such written transfer instructions; however, the Registrar shall not be required to deliver such new Bonds within a period of less than 60 days from the date of receipt of such written transfer instructions.

C. The Board and the Registrar shall be entitled to treat the Registered Owner of any Bond as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes hereof and any applicable laws, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by any or all of them and the Board and the Registrar shall have no responsibility for transmitting payments or notices to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds held by DTC or any successor or new Depository named pursuant to paragraph A hereof.

D. The Board and the Registrar shall endeavor to cooperate with DTC or any successor or new Depository named pursuant to clause (1) or (2) of paragraph A hereof in effectuating payment of the principal amount of the Bonds upon maturity or prior redemption by arranging for payment in such a manner that funds representing such payments are available to the Depository on the date they are due.

E. Upon any partial redemption of any of the Bonds, Cede & Co. (or its successor) in its discretion may request the District to issue and authenticate a new Bond or shall

15

make an appropriate notation on the Bond indicating the date and amount of prepayment, except in the case of final maturity, in which case the Bond must be presented to the Registrar prior to payment. The records of the Paying Agent shall govern in the case of any dispute as to the amount of any partial prepayment made to Cede & Co. (or its successor).

Section 10. <u>Uniform Commercial Code</u>. The Owner or Owners of the Bonds shall possess all rights enjoyed by the holders of investment securities under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code – Investment Securities. The Bonds shall constitute the general obligations of the District and the full faith and credit of the District shall be, and hereby is, pledged to the payment thereof.

Section 11. Form of Bond, Certificate of Authentication, Assignment and **Registration Panel**. The form of Bond, the Registrar's certificate of authentication, the form of assignment, and the prepayment panel shall be in substantially the following forms:

(Form of Bond)

Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the District or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the Registered Owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF COLORADO COUNTY OF MESA

MESA COUNTY VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 51 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2022

No. R–_			\$
INTEREST RATE	MATURITY DATE	DATED AS OF	CUSIP
% per annum	December 1, 20		
REGISTERED OWNER:	CEDE & CO.		
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:			_ DOLLARS

On the faith, credit, and behalf of Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado (the "District"), the Board of Education of the District (the "Board") hereby acknowledges the District indebted and promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount specified above, on the Maturity Date specified above (unless called for earlier redemption), interest thereon payable on June 1 and December 1 in each year commencing on ______, at the Interest Rate per annum specified above, until the principal sum is paid or payment has been provided therefor. This Bond bears interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) payable to the Registered Owner at the Interest Rate specified above from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for, or, if no interest has been paid, from the date of this Bond.

This Bond is one of an authorized series of Bonds issued pursuant to a resolution of the Board adopted on January 4, 2022 (the "Bond Resolution"). This Bond bears interest, matures, is payable, is subject to redemption, and is transferable as provided in the Bond Resolution and the Sale Certificate executed by any of the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer prior to the delivery of the Bonds. To the extent not defined herein, terms used herein are used as defined in the Bond Resolution.

[INSERT REDEMPTION PROVISIONS].

Reference is made to the Bond Resolution and to all resolutions supplemental thereto, with respect to the nature and extent of the security for the Bonds, rights, duties, and obligations of the District, the rights of the Owners of the Bonds, the rights, duties, and obligations of the Paying Agent and Registrar, the circumstances under which any Bond is no longer Outstanding, the ability to amend the Bond Resolution, and to all the provisions of which the Owner hereof by the acceptance of this Bond assents.

The Bonds of the series of which this is one are issued by the District, upon its behalf and upon the credit thereof, for the purpose of defraying wholly or in part the costs of the Project, all under the authority of and in full conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Colorado, Title 22, Article 42, Colorado Revised Statutes, an election held within the District on November 2, 2021, and pursuant to the Bond Resolution duly adopted prior to the issuance of this Bond. The Bonds are also issued pursuant to Title 11, Article 57, Part 2, Colorado Revised Statutes (the "Supplemental Act"). Pursuant to Section 11-57-210 of the Supplemental Act, this recital shall be conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Bonds after their delivery for value.

It is hereby certified, recited, and warranted that all the requirements of law have been complied with by the proper officers of the District in the issuance of this Bond; that the total indebtedness of the District, including that of this Bond, does not exceed any limit of indebtedness prescribed by the Constitution or laws of the State of Colorado; and that provision has been made for the levy and collection of annual taxes sufficient to pay the interest on and the principal of this Bond when the same become due.

The full faith and credit of the District are hereby irrevocably pledged for the punctual payment of the principal of and the interest on this Bond.

This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Registrar shall have manually signed the certificate of authentication herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Education of Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado, has caused this Bond to be signed and executed on behalf of the District by the manual or facsimile signature of its President and to be subscribed and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary and with a manual or facsimile impression of the seal of the District affixed hereto, as of the date specified above.

> (Manual or Facsimile Signature) President, Board of Education Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado

(MANUAL OR FACSIMILE SEAL)

Attest:

(Manual or Facsimile Signature) Secretary, Board of Education Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado

(End of Form of Bond)

(Form of Registrar's Certificate of Authentication)

Date of authentication and registration:

This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Bond Resolution, and this bond has been duly registered on the registration books kept by the undersigned as Registrar for such Bonds.

UMB Bank, n.a., as Registrar

By: ______Authorized Officer

(End of Form of Registrar's Certificate of Authentication)

(Form of Assignment)

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto the within bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney, to transfer the same on the books of the Registrar, with full

Signature

power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Signature must be guaranteed by a member of a Medallion Signature Program

Address of Transferee:

Social Security or other tax identification number of transferee:

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond with the name as written on the face of the within bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

EXCHANGE OR TRANSFER FEES MAY BE CHARGED

(End of Form of Assignment)

(Form of Prepayment Panel)

The following installments of principal (or portion thereof) of this bond have been prepaid in accordance with the terms of the Bond Resolution authorizing the issuance of this bond.

Date of <u>Prepayment</u>	Principal <u>Prepaid</u>	Signature of Authorized Representative of the Depository

(End of Form of Prepayment Panel)

Section 12. <u>Delivery of Bonds</u>. When the Bonds have been duly executed and authenticated, they will be delivered to the Underwriter on receipt of the agreed purchase price. The Registrar shall initially register the Bonds in the name of "Cede & Co.," as nominee of DTC. The funds realized from the sale of the Bonds shall be applied solely to defray the costs of the Project, and for no other purposes whatsoever. The Underwriter shall in no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the District, or any of its officers, of any of the funds derived from the sale of the Bonds.

Section 13. <u>Disposition of Bond Proceeds</u>.

A. The net proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited with the District and applied solely for the payment of the costs of the Project. After adequate provision therefor is made, any unexpended proceeds allocable to the Project shall be deposited in the "Mesa County Valley School District No. 51, Mesa County, Colorado, Bond Fund" (the "Bond Fund") held by the County Treasurer.

B. The remainder of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 14. <u>Payment of Principal and Interest -- Tax Levy</u>.

A. The interest and principal, if any, falling due on the Bonds prior to the time when sufficient proceeds of a levy therefor are available shall be paid out of the general revenues of the District or other moneys available therefor. For the purpose of reimbursing any such general revenues so used for principal and interest and to meet the principal and interest payments accruing thereafter, as the same shall become due, there shall be levied by the Board of County Commissioners for the County, on all taxable property in the District, in addition to all other taxes, direct annual taxes unlimited as to rate and in an amount sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Bonds when due, promptly as the same respectively become due. The taxes when collected shall be deposited into the Bond held by the County Treasurer, to be applied solely for the purpose of the payment of interest and principal on the Bonds, and for no other purpose whatsoever, until the indebtedness so contracted under this Resolution, principal and interest, shall have been fully paid, satisfied, and discharged; the District may apply any other funds that may be in the treasury of the District and available for that purpose to the payment of interest or principal as the same respectively become due, and to that extent the levy or levies herein provided for may thereupon

be diminished. The levies may also be diminished to the extent that funds are not needed as a result of prior redemption in accordance with the terms of this Resolution.

Said direct annual taxes levied to pay said principal and interest shall be in addition to any and all other taxes levied to effect the purposes of the County or the District. No statutory or constitutional provision enacted after the issuance of the Bonds shall in any manner be construed as limiting or impairing the obligation of the District and the District hereby covenants to levy ad valorem taxes on property within the District, without limitation of rate and in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. Any changes in the boundaries of the District subsequent to the delivery of the Bonds shall be effected in such a manner as to fully preserve and protect the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

It shall be the duty of the Board annually at the time and in the manner provided by law for levying other taxes, if such action shall be necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution, to ratify and carry out the provisions hereof with reference to the levy and collection of taxes; and the Board shall require the officers of the District to levy, extend, and collect such taxes on property within the District, in the manner provided by law for the purpose of creating a fund for the payment of the principal of the Bonds and the interest accruing thereon. Such taxes, when collected, shall be kept for and applied only to the payment of the interest and principal of the Bonds as hereinbefore specified.

B. The foregoing provisions of this Resolution and the Sale Certificate are hereby declared to be the certificate of the Board to the Board of County Commissioners of the County, showing the aggregate amount of taxes to be levied by the Board of County Commissioners from time to time, as required by law, for the purpose of paying the principal of the bonded indebtedness and the interest thereon as the same shall hereafter accrue.

Section 15. <u>Covenants with Registered Owners</u>.

A. The District covenants for the benefit of the Owners that it will not take any action or omit to take any action with respect to the Bonds, the proceeds thereof, any other funds of the District or any facilities financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bonds if such action or omission (i) would cause the interest on the Bonds to lose its exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code, or (ii) would cause interest on the Bonds to lose its exclusion from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in Section 55(b)(2) of the Code, or (iii) would cause interest on the Bonds to lose its exemption from Colorado

income tax under present State law. The foregoing covenant shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the payment in full or defeasance of the Bonds until the date on which all obligations of the District in fulfilling the above covenant under the Code have been met.

B. The District also covenants for the benefit of each Owner that it will annually prepare or cause to be prepared a budget and an audit report, will annually file or cause to be filed with the appropriate State agency a copy of the adopted budget, the appropriation resolution and audit report, all in accordance with State law.

C. The District covenants that it will not take any action or fail to take any action which action or failure to act would release any property which is included within the boundaries of the District at any time from liability for the payment of direct annual taxes levied by the District for the payment of the principal or interest on the Bonds.

D. The District covenants for the benefit of the Owners, including Beneficial Owners, that it will comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate which will be executed by District officers in connection with the delivery of the Bonds.

Section 16. <u>Investment of Funds</u>. Any proceeds of the Bonds or moneys in any fund or account may be deposited, invested, or reinvested in any manner permitted by law. Such deposits or investments shall either be subject to redemption at any time at face value by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, or shall mature at such time or times as shall most nearly coincide with the expected need for moneys from the fund in question.

Section 17. <u>Defeasance</u>. If, when the Bonds shall be paid in accordance with their terms (or payment of the Bonds has been provided for in the manner set forth in the following paragraph), then this Resolution and all rights granted hereunder shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void and be discharged and satisfied.

Payment of any Outstanding Bond shall, prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof, be deemed to have been provided for within the meaning and with the effect expressed in this Section if (a) in case said Bond is to be redeemed on any date prior to its maturity, the District shall have given to the Paying Agent in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to give on a date in accordance with the provisions of Section 6 hereof notice of redemption of such Bond on said redemption date, such notice to be given in accordance with the provisions of Section 6 hereof, (b) there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent or a commercial bank exercising trust powers either moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or Federal Securities which shall not contain provisions permitting the redemption thereof at the option of the issuer, the principal of and the interest on which when due, and without any reinvestment thereof, will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with or held by the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay when due the principal of and interest due and to become due on said Bond on and prior to the redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in the event said Bond is not by its terms subject to redemption within the next sixty days, the District shall have given the Paying Agent in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to give, as soon as practicable in the same manner as the notice of redemption is given pursuant to Section 6 hereof, a notice to the Owner of such Bond that the deposit required by (b) above has been made with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers and that payment of said Bond has been provided for in accordance with this Section and stating such maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of and interest due on said Bond. Neither such securities nor moneys deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers pursuant to this Section or principal or interest payments on any such Federal Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the principal of and interest due on said Bond; provided any cash received from such principal or interest payments on such Federal Securities deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers, if not then needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in securities of the type described in (b) of this paragraph maturing at times and in amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal of and interest to become due on said Bond on or prior to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be. At such time as payment of a Bond has been provided for as aforesaid, such Bond shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Resolution, except for the purpose of any payment from such moneys or securities deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers.

The release of the obligations of the District under this Section shall be without prejudice to the right of the Paying Agent to be paid reasonable compensation for all services rendered by it hereunder and all its reasonable expenses, charges and other disbursements incurred on or about the administration of and performance of its powers and duties hereunder. Upon compliance with the foregoing provisions of this Section with respect to all Bonds Outstanding, this Resolution may be discharged in accordance with the provisions of this Section but the liability of the District in respect of the Bonds shall continue; provided that the Owners thereof shall thereafter be entitled to payment only out of the moneys or Federal Securities deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank exercising trust powers as provided in this Section.

Section 18. **Direction to Take Authorizing Action.** The President, Secretary, Superintendent, Chief Financial Officer and the officers of the District be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Resolution including without limiting the generality of the foregoing: the original or additional printing of the Bonds in such quantities as may be convenient, the procuring of bond insurance with respect to the Bonds, if any, qualification of the Bonds for registration with a securities depository, the execution of such certificates as may reasonably be required by the Underwriter, including without limitation certificates relating to the execution of the Bonds, the preparation of the report to the State Department of Education required by Section 22-42-125, C.R.S. (said report to be filed within the time established by statute), the tenure and identity of the District officials, the assessed valuation and indebtedness of the District, the rate of taxes levied against taxable property within the District, the delivery of the Bonds, the expectations of the District with respect to the investment of the proceeds of the Bonds, the receipt of the purchase price and the absence of litigation, pending or threatened, if in accordance with the facts, affecting the validity thereof, the absence and existence of factors affecting the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and the District's undertaking to provide continuing financial and other disclosure in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

Section 19. <u>Approvals, Authorizations, and Amendments.</u> The forms of the Registrar Agreement, the Purchase Contract, and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate are hereby approved. The District shall enter into and perform its obligations under the Registrar Agreement, the Purchase Contract and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in the forms of each of such documents as are on file with the District, with only such changes therein as are not inconsistent herewith. The President is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Registrar Agreement, and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The Secretary is hereby authorized to attest and to affix the seal of the District to the Resolution, and the Registrar Agreement, and the President and

Secretary are further authorized to execute, attest, seal, and authenticate such other documents, instruments, or certificates as are deemed necessary or desirable by bond counsel in order to issue and secure the Bonds. Such documents are to be executed in substantially the forms hereinabove approved, provided that such documents may be completed, corrected, or revised as deemed necessary by the parties thereto in order to carry out the purposes of this Resolution. Copies of all of the documents shall be delivered, filed and recorded as provided therein.

Any one of the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer has the authority to accept any proposal of the Underwriter to purchase the Bonds and to execute the Purchase Contract and the Sale Certificate in connection therewith, as well as the authority to make determinations in relation to the Bonds contained in the Sale Certificate subject to the parameters and restrictions contained in Section 5 of this Resolution. Further, the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer are hereby independently authorized to execute and deliver a commitment for the issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy on the Bonds by a bond insurer, if any, and enter into any related documents or agreements subject to the Supplemental Act to secure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds.

The proper officers of the District are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to bond counsel certified copies of all proceedings and records of the District relating to the Bonds and such other affidavits and certificates as may be required to show the facts relating to the authorization and issuance thereof as such facts appear from the books and records in such officers' custody and control or as otherwise known to them.

The approval hereby given to the various documents referred to above includes an approval of such additional details therein as may be necessary and appropriate for their completion, deletions therefrom and additions thereto as may be approved by bond counsel prior to the execution of the documents. The execution of any instrument by the appropriate officers of the District herein authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the approval by the District of such instrument in accordance with the terms hereof.

Section 20. <u>Successor Registrar or Paying Agent</u>. The Registrar or Paying Agent may resign at any time on 30 days' prior written notice to the District. The District may remove said Registrar or Paying Agent upon 30 days' prior written notice to the Registrar and/or Paying Agent, as the case may be. No resignation or removal of the Registrar or Paying Agent shall take effect until a successor has been appointed; provided, that if no successor is appointed

by the end of 90 days, the Paying Agent or Registrar may petition a court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor. If the Registrar or Paying Agent initially appointed shall resign, or if the District shall remove said Registrar or Paying Agent, the District may, upon notice mailed to each Registered Owner of any Bond, at the address last shown on the registration books, or by electronic means to DTC or its successor, appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or both. Every such successor Registrar or Paying Agent shall be a bank or trust company located in and in good standing in the United States and having a shareowners' equity (e.g., capital stock, surplus, and undivided profits), however denominated, not less than \$10,000,000 or shall be an officer of the District. It shall not be required that the same institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the District shall have the right to have the same institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder.

Any company or national banking association into which the Registrar or Paying Agent may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company or national banking association resulting from any merger, conversion, or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company or national banking association to which the Registrar or Paying Agent may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, provided such company shall be eligible, shall be the successor to such Registrar or Paying Agent without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding.

Section 21. Official Statement. The distribution and use of the Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form as on file with the District, with such revisions, updates and changes as are hereafter approved by the Superintendent or the Chief Financial Officer is in all respects hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. The Underwriter is authorized to prepare or cause to be prepared, and the President is authorized and directed to approve, on behalf of the District, a final Official Statement for use in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds. The execution of a final Official Statement by the President shall be conclusively deemed to evidence the approval of the form and contents thereof by the District. The designation of the Preliminary Official Statement by the President, the Superintendent, or the Chief Financial Officer as a "deemed final Official Statement" for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission is hereby authorized and confirmed.

Section 22. <u>Contract with Bondholders</u>.

A. After any of the Bonds have been issued, this Resolution shall constitute a contract between the District and the Owners of such Bonds and shall be and remain irrepealable until such Bonds and the interest thereon shall have been fully paid, satisfied and discharged.

B. The District may, without the consent of or notice to the Owners, adopt one or more resolutions supplemental hereto, which supplemental resolutions shall thereafter form a part hereof, for any one or more of the following purposes:

1. To cure any ambiguity, or to cure, correct, or supplement any formal defect or omission or inconsistent provision contained in this Resolution, to make any provision necessary or desirable due to a change in law, to make any provisions with respect to matters arising under this Resolution, or to make any provisions for any other purpose if, in each case, such provisions are necessary or desirable and do not materially adversely affect the interests of the Registered Owners;

2. To pledge additional revenues, properties, or collateral as security for the Bonds;

3. To grant or confer upon the Registered Owners any additional rights, remedies, powers, or authorities that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered Owners; or

4. To qualify this Resolution under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

C. Except for amendatory or supplemental resolutions adopted pursuant to paragraph B hereof, the Owners of not less than two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to and approve the adoption by the District of such resolutions amendatory or supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the District for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to, or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution; provided however, that without the consent of the Owners of all the Bonds affected thereby, nothing herein contained shall permit, or be construed as permitting:

1. a change in the terms of the maturity of any Bond, in the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of interest thereon, the dates of payment of principal and interest, or in the terms of prior redemption of any Bond;

30

2. an impairment of the right of the Owners to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment of the principal of or interest on such Bonds when due;

3. a privilege or priority of any Bond or any interest payment over any other Bond or interest payment; or

4. a reduction in the percentage in principal amount of the Bonds, the consent of whose Owners is required for any such amendatory or supplemental resolution.

If, at any time, the District shall desire to adopt an amendatory or supplemental resolution for any of the purposes of this paragraph C, the District shall cause notice of the proposed adoption of such amendatory or supplemental resolution to be given by mailing such notice by certified or registered first-class mail to each Owner of the Bond affected at the address shown on the registration books of the Registrar or by electronic means to DTC or its successor, at least thirty days prior to the proposed date of adoption of any such amendatory or supplemental Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed amendatory or resolution. supplemental resolution and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the offices of the District or some other suitable location for inspection by all Owners. If, within sixty days or such longer period as shall be prescribed by the District following the giving of such notice, the Owners of not less than the required percentage in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding at the time of the execution of any such amendatory or supplemental resolution shall have consented to and approved the execution thereof as herein provided, no Owner shall have any right to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the adoption and effectiveness thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the District from adopting the same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof.

Section 23. <u>Pledge of Revenues</u>. The creation, perfection, enforcement, and priority of the pledge of revenues to secure or pay the Bonds as provided herein shall be governed by Section 11-57-208 of the Supplemental Act and this Resolution. The revenues pledged for the payment of the Bonds, as received by or otherwise credited to the District, shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery, filing, or further act. The lien of such pledge on the revenues pledged for payment of the Bonds and the obligation to perform the contractual provisions made herein shall have priority over any or all other obligations and liabilities of the District, except for any general obligation indebtedness of the District currently outstanding or any general obligation indebtedness issued on a parity with the Bonds. The lien of

such pledge shall be valid, binding, and enforceable as against all Persons having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise against the District irrespective of whether such Persons have notice of such liens.

Section 24. <u>No Recourse Against Officers and Agents</u>. Pursuant to Section 11-57-209 of the Supplemental Act, if a member of the Board, or any officer or agent of the District acts in good faith, no civil recourse shall be available against such member, officer, or agent for payment of the principal, interest or prior redemption premiums on the Bonds. Such recourse shall not be available either directly or indirectly through the Board or the District, or otherwise, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute, rule of law, enforcement of penalty, or otherwise. By the acceptance of the Bonds and as a part of the consideration of their sale or purchase, any Person purchasing or selling such Bond specifically waives any such recourse.

Section 25. <u>Bond Insurer as Owner</u>. So long as the issuer of a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, is not then in default under such bond insurance policy, any bond insurer shall be deemed to be the Owner of all Bonds insured by it for purposes of exercising remedies, waiving defaults, or granting consents pursuant to this Bond Resolution.

Section 26. <u>Conclusive Recital</u>. Pursuant to Section 11-57-210 of the Supplemental Act, the Bonds shall contain a recital that they are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Supplemental Act. Such recital shall be conclusive evidence of the validity and the regularity of the issuance of the Bonds after their delivery for value.

Section 27. <u>Limitation of Actions</u>. Pursuant to Section 11-57-212 of the Supplemental Act, no legal or equitable action brought with respect to any legislative acts or proceedings of the District in connection with the authorization or issuance of the Bonds, including but not limited to the adoption of this Resolution, shall be commenced more than thirty days after the authorization of the Bonds. Pursuant to Section 22-42-129, C.R.S., no action shall be brought questioning the legality of the Bonds or any resolution, proceeding, or contract in connection with the Bonds on and after thirty days from the effective date of this Resolution.

Section 28. <u>Registration with Clerk and Recorder</u>. Pursuant to Section 22-42-121, C.R.S., the Bonds, after their execution but before their delivery, shall first be registered (on a collective, not an individual, basis) by the Clerk and Recorder in and for Mesa County, being the County in which the headquarters of the District is located. Such recording is to be in the book kept for that purpose and to consist of a notation of the name of the District and the amount, date

of issuance and maturity, and rate of interest of the Bonds. A certified copy of this Resolution, constituting a request and order, duly made and entered of record, shall be furnished to the Mesa County Clerk and Recorder and thereupon it shall be his or her duty to make such registration. There is hereby appropriated out of any funds of the District available for that purpose the amount of the Mesa County Clerk and Recorder's registration fees as required by law, which fee shall be paid to the Mesa County Clerk and Recorder.

Section 29. <u>Severability</u>. If any section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.

Section 30. <u>Repealer</u>. All acts, orders, and resolutions and parts thereof, in conflict with this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, rescinded and repealed.

Section 31. <u>Holidays</u>. If the date for making any payment or the last date for performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided in this Resolution, shall be a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city in which the Principal Office of the Registrar and Paying Agent is located are authorized by law to remain closed, such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding day not a legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized by law to remain closed, with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Resolution, and no interest shall accrue for the period after such nominal date.

Section 32. <u>Electronic Signatures; Electronic Transactions</u>. The President, Secretary, Superintendent, Chief Financial Officer, and other employees and officials of the District that are authorized or directed to execute any agreement, document, certificate, instrument or other paper in accordance with this Resolution (collectively, the "Authorized Documents") are hereby authorized to execute Authorized Documents electronically via facsimile or email signature. Any electronic signature so affixed to any Authorized Document shall carry the full legal force and effect of any original, handwritten signature. This provision is made pursuant to Article 71.3 of Title 24, C.R.S., also known as the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act. It is hereby determined that the transactions described herein may be conducted and related documents may be stored by electronic means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law.

Section 33. <u>Effective Date</u>. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this January 4, 2022.

President, Board of Education

(SEAL)

Attest:

Secretary, Board of Education

STATE OF COLORADO)
)
COUNTY OF MESA)SS
)
MESA COUNTY VALLEY)
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 51)

I, Angela Lema, am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Mesa County Valley School District No. 51 (the "District") in Mesa County, Colorado, and I do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true and correct copy of a resolution (the "Resolution") introduced at a special meeting of the Board of Education of the District (the "Board") on January 4, 2022.

2. The Resolution was duly moved and seconded and the Resolution was adopted at the special meeting of January 4, 2022, by an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board as follows:

Name	"Yes"	"No"	Absent	Abstain
Doug Levinson				
Kari Sholtes				
Andrea Haitz				
Willie Jones				
Angela Lema				

3. The members of the Board were present at such meeting and voted on the passage of such Resolution as set forth above.

4. The Resolution was approved and authenticated by the signature of the President of the Board, sealed with the District seal, attested by the Secretary and recorded in the minutes of the Board.

5. Attached hereto as <u>Exhibit A</u> is a copy of the notice of the special meeting of January 4, 2022, which notice was posted at least 24 hours before such meeting in accordance with law.

6. There are no bylaws, rules, or regulations of the Board which prevent the immediate adoption of the Resolution set forth in the foregoing proceedings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said District, this January 4, 2022.

(SEAL)

Secretary

Resolution: 21/22: 46 Adopted: January 7, 2022

EXHIBIT A

(Attach Notice of Meeting)